## BYLAWS OF

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## ARTICLE

ARTICLE I

ARTICLE II

Section 1. Section 2. Section 3. Section 4. Section 5. Section 6. Section 7. Section 8. Section 9. Section 10: Section 11. Section 12. Section 13. Section 14. Section 15. Section 16.

## TITLE

#### PAGE

#### CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP

Section	1.	Creation		1
Section	2.	Applicability	of Bylaws	1
Section	3.	Definitions.		1

# ASSOCIATION OF CONDOMINIUM OWNERS

Membership	2
Register of Members	2
Responsibilities	2
Place of Meetings	
Annual Meetings	
Special Meetings.	(4 (1) (1) (1) (1)
Notice of Meetings.	2
Quorum	2
Voting	3
Proxies	4
Adjournment	4
Action without Meeting	4
Order of Business.	2
Books and Records.	
	u) u)
Parliamentary Authority	5
Complaints and Official	
Business	5

## ARTICLE III

Section 1. Section 2. Section 3. Section 4. Section 5. Section 6. Section 7. Section 8. Section 9. Section 10.

#### BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Number and Qualifications	5
Powers and Duties	6
Managing Agent	7
Representation	8
Election and Term	E
Vacancies	8
Removal of Directors	8
Compensation	8
Regular Meetings	
Special Meetings	ç

•

.

•

Section Section Section	12.	Waiver of Notice Quorum of Board Fidelity Bonds	9 9 9
ARTICLE IV		OFFICERS	
Section Section Section Section Section Section Section Section	2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.	Designation. Election of Officers. Removal of Officers. President. Vice President. Treasurer. Secretary. Auditor. Execution of Instruments.	11
ARTICLE V		COMMITTEES	
Section Section	—	Committees of Directors Other Committees	
ARTICLE VI		ASSESSMENTS	
Section Section		Obligationof Initial Obligation of Purchaser of a Condominium Unit	12 .
ARTICLE VI	ſ	HANDLING OF FUNDS	
Section	1.	Accounts	12
ARTICLE VI	II ,	OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNERS	
Section Section		Rules and Regulations Repair and Maintenance	12 14
ARTICLE IX		AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS	
Section	1.	Procedure	14
ARTICLE X		FISCAL YEAR	
Section	1.	Fiscal Year	14
ARTICLE XI		COMPLIANCE	
Section Section Section	2.	Subordination Interpretation Nonprofit Corporation	14 15 15

ARTICLE XII

· · • -

•

· ·

.

•

•

ſ

PERIODIC	REAPPRAISAL	15
	OF BYLAWS BY ANT	15
	OF BYLAWS BY FIRST DF DIRECTORS	15

(

-

EXHIBIT "A"

· •

#### BYLAWS

#### OF

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM

#### OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

## ARTICLE I.

#### CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP

Section 1. <u>Creation</u>. The Project known as Country Square, A Condominium, consisting of that certain parcel of land, and all improvements situate thereon, situated in the Anchorage Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference, has been submitted to the provisions of the Horizontal Property Regimes Act of the State of Alaska (Title 34, Chapter 07 Alaska Statutes) as now existing or as hereafter amended. The Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Country Square, A Condominium, (hereinafter the "Declaration") was recorded \_\_\_\_\_\_, 19\_\_, in Book at Page

Section 2. <u>Applicability of Bylaws</u>. The provisions of these Bylaws are applicable to the Project which include the land and all the structures and improvements located thereon. All present and future Owners, tenants and occupants of any Condominium Units of the Project, are subject to these Bylaws. Acquisition, lease, rental or occupancy of any of the Condominium Units of the Project shall signify that these Bylaws are accepted and ratified and shall be complied with by the occupant.

Section 3. <u>Definitions</u>. Unless otherwise specified, the following terms shall have the same meaning in these Bylaws as such terms have in the Declaration: Unit, Condominium Unit, Condominium Building, Owner, Project, Common Area. Limited Common Areas and Facilities, Mortgage, Mortgagee, Mortgagor, Institutional Holder, Association, Board, Bylaws and Declarant. The terms Owner and Member as used herein shall by synonymous.

## ARTICLE II.

## ASSOCIATION OF CONDOMINIUM OWNERS

Section 1. <u>Membership</u>. All Owners of Condominium Units in the Project shall constitute the Association of Condominium Owners, herein called "The Association". The Owner upon acquiring title thereto shall automatically become a member of the Association and shall remain a member thereof until such time as his ownership of such Condominium Unit ceases for any reason; provided, however, that to such extent and for such purposes, including the exercise of voting rights, as shall be provided by agreement of sale or by lease of any Condominium Unit filed with the Board of Directors of the Association, the purchaser or the lessee of such Condominium Unit shall be deemed to be the Owner thereof.

Section 2. <u>Register of Members</u>. The Board shall cause a register to be kept containing the names and addresses of all members of the Association. Members of the Association who sell or convey their interest in a Condominium Unit shall promptly report to the Board of Directors the name and address of their successor in interest. A member of the Association, shall upon request, furnish the Board with a copy of any document under which he obtained ownership of a Condominium Unit, or any interest therein, and any documents creating a security interest in such Condominium Unit.

Section 3. <u>Responsibilities</u>. The Association shall have the responsibility of administering the Project through the Board of Directors.

Section 4. <u>Place of Meetings</u>. Meetings of the Association shall be held in such suitable place convenient to the Owners as may be designated by the Board of Directors by written notice to the members.

Section 5. <u>Annual Meetings</u>. The first annual meeting of Owners shall be held as soon as practicable, but not later than 120 days, after the conveyance by Declarant of Condominium Units representing seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes of all the Owners, or within two (2) years after conveyance of the first unit in any subsequent phase, whichever occurs first.

Thereafter, the annual meeting of the Association shall be held within three (3) months after the end of each accounting year of the Project. At such meetings the Owners shall elect by ballot a Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of -2untryNoou (R)P: (Bylaws) 03

Section 5 of Article III of these Bylaws and may also transact such other business of the Association as may properly come before them.

Section 6. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Association may be held at any time upon the call of the President or upon the call of Owners having at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the undivided interest in the Common Areas and Facilities.

Section 7. Notice of Meetings. The Secretary shall at least seven (7) days before the date set for each annual and special meeting give written notice thereof to each Owner according to the Association's record of ownership, stating whether it is an annual or special meeting, the authority for the call thereof, the place, day and hour of such meeting and the purpose therefor, in any of the following ways: (a) by leaving the same with him personally or (b) by leaving the same at his residence or usual place of business, or (c) by mailing it, postage prepaid, addressed to him at his address as it appears on the record of ownership of the Association. If notice is given pursuant to the provisions of this section, the failure of any Owner to receive actual notice of such meeting shall in no way invalidate the meeting or any proceedings thereat. The presence of any Owner in person or by proxy at any meeting shall be deemed a waiver of any required notice as to such Owner unless such Owner shall at the opening thereof object to the holding of such meeting for noncompliance with the provisions of this section.

Any Institutional Holder of a first mortgage on a Condominium Unit in the Project will, upon request, be entitled to written notice of all meetings and is entitled to attend (by agent, employee, or other designee) all such meetings.

Section 8. Quorum. The presence at any meeting in person or by proxy of one-third (1/3) of the Owners as herein defined shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of the quorum present at any meeting shall be binding upon the Association except as otherwise provided herein.

Section 9. Voting. Voting shall be on a percentage basis, and the percentage of the total vote to which the Owner is entitled shall be the percentage assigned to such Condominium Unit in the Declaration. Any specified percentage of the Owners means the Owners to which are appurtenant such percentage of the Common Area as established by the Declaration. An executor, administrator, guardian or trustee may vote in person or by proxy

 $\langle$ 

at any meeting of the Association the percentage of vote for any Condominium Unit owned or controlled by him in such capacity, whether or not the same shall have been transferred to his name in the Association's record of ownership, provided that he shall first present evidence satisfactory to the Secretary that he owns or controls such Condominium Unit in such capacity. In the event the Condominium Unit is owned by more than one person, firm, corporation, trustor, or combination thereof, they must act unanimously to cast the vote allocated to the Condominium Unit. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, an Owner owning more than one Condominium Unit in the Project shall be entitled to a vote equivalent to his total percentage interest in the Common Areas for all Units owned.

Section 10. <u>Proxies</u>. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy of the Owner as shown by the record of ownership of the Association. The authority given by any Owner to another person to represent him at meetings of the Association shall be in writing, signed by such Owner and filed with the Secretary, and unless limited by its terms shall continue until revoked by a writing filed with the Secretary or by the death or incapacity of such Owner.

Section 11. Adjournment. Any meeting of the Association may be adjourned from time to time to such place and time as may be determined by majority vote of the Owners present, whether or not a quorum be present, without notice other than the announcement at such meeting. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted by a quorum at the meeting as originally called.

Section 12. Action Without Meeting. Any action, which under the provisions of the Alaska Statutes may be taken at a meeting of the Owners, may be taken without a meeting if authorized by a writing signed by all of the Owners who would be entitled to vote at a meeting for such purpose, and filed with the Secretary.

Section 13. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Association shall be as follows:

- (a) Roll call.
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting.
- (c) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting.
- (d) Report of Officers.
- (e) Report of committees.
- (f) Election of Officers.

-4-

(g) Unfinished business.(h) New business.

Section 14. <u>Books and Records</u>. Any Owner or Institutional Holder of a first mortgage on a Condominium Unit in the Project shall, upon request, be entitled to inspect the books and records of the Project during the normal business hours.

Section 15. <u>Parliamentary Authority</u>. In the event of dispute, the parliamentary authority for the meetings shall be the most current available edition of Roberts Rules of Order, Revised.

Section 16. <u>Complaints and Official Business</u>. Any complaints and all official business shall be transmitted in writing, emergencies excepted, and such written business shall be submitted to the Board through the President if available, and the Secretary if the President is not available. The Board of Directors shall answer all official matters submitted to it in writing after it has acted upon it at the next regular meeting of the Board.

#### ARTICLE III.

## BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Number and Qualifications. The direction and administration of the Project and the affairs of the Association shall be vested in a Board of Directors (hereinafter "Board") composed of five (5) persons, who shall be elected as hereinafter provided. The number of directors may be increased up to the number of eleven (11) after the addition of the subsequent phase by a vote of 60% of the members as provided in Article IX of the Bylaws or may be reduced to not less than three (3) by like vote. The question of determining the number of directors may be considered at any annual meeting without the necessity of previously giving notice of the contemplation of such change, or at any special meeting called for that purpose, in accordance with these Bylaws. Each member of the Board shall be one of the Owners, except for those elected and serving on the initial Board of Directors; provided, however, that in the event an Owner is a corporation, partnership, trust, or other legal entity other than a natural person or persons, then any officer, shareholder or director of such corporation, partner of such partnership, beneficiary or individual trustee of such trust, or manager of such other legal entity, shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board.

Section 2. <u>Powers and Duties</u>. The Board shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts and things therefor as are not by law, by the Declaration or by these Bylaws, directed to be exercised and done only by the Owners. In addition to powers and duties conferred by these Bylaws, the Declaration or resolutions of the Association, the Board shall be responsible for, but not limited to, the following:

Ç

- (a) Management and operation of the Project and maintenace, repair, and rebuilding of the Common Areas thereof.
- (b) Establishment and collection of monthly assessments and special assessments against the Owners for common expenses; and
- (c) Appointment and dismissal of any personnel necessary for operation and maintenance of the Project.
- (d) Execution of contracts within the scope of their duties and powers.
- (e) Administration, interpretation and enforcement of the covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, uses, limitations, obligations and all other provisions set forth in the Declaration and Bylaws.
- (f) Establishment, and enforcement of such reasonable rules and regulations as may be necessary for the operation, use and occupancy of this Project with the right to amend same from time to time.
- (g) Purchase, maintenance and replacement of any equipment and -6-

untrywood (R)P: (Bylaws) 07

utility services required for the Common Areas.

- (h) Protection and defense of the entire Project from loss and damage by suit or otherwise.
- (i) Borrowing of funds and execution of all such instruments evidencing such indebtedness. Any such indebtedness shall be the several obligation of all the Owners in the same proportion as their interests in the general Common Areas.
- (j) Purchase and maintenance at all times of all policies of fire and liability insurance with respect to the Project required by the Declaration or this Bylaw and such other insurance and bonds as may be provided by the Declaration or by this Bylaw or authorized by the Board.
- (k) Custody of all funds of the Association, and maintenance of full and accurate books of account and records of said funds.
- (1) Arbitration of disputes between Owners relating to the Project.
- (m) In general to carry on the administration of this Association and to do all of those things necessary and reasonable in order to carry out the communal aspect of Condominium ownership.

Section 3. <u>Managing Agent</u>. The Board of Directors shall employ professional management in the form of either a -7-

responsible Alaska firm or a resident manager, or both, to manage and control the Project at such compensation and with such administrative powers and duties as the Board may establish and delegate.

Section 4. <u>Representation</u>. The President or Managing Agent, subject to the direction of the Board of Directors, shall represent the Association or any two or more Owners, similarly situated as a class in any action, suit, hearing or other proceeding concerning the Association, the Common Areas or more than one Condominium Unit and, on behalf of the Association or Owners, may institute, defend, intervene in, prosecute and settle any such actions, suits and proceedings, without prejudice to the rights of any Owners individually to appear, sue or be sued.

Section 5. Election and Term. At each annual meeting of the Owners, the Owners snall, by a vote of a majority of the Owners present at such meeting, elect the Board of Directors or Director for the ensuing term. The vote shall not be cumulative. The directors, except as otherwise in these Bylaws provided, shall hold office for a period of one (1) year and until their respective successors shall have been elected, except that at the first election of directors, one (1) of the directors shall be elected for one (1) year, two (2) for two (2) years and two (2) for three (3) years.

Section 6. <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the Board of Directors caused by any reason other than the removal of a director by the Association shall be filled by vote of a majority of the remaining directors, even though they may constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a director until his successor is elected at the next annual meeting of the Association. Death, incapacity or resignation of any director, or his continuous absence from the State of Alaska for more than six (6) months, missing three consecutive meetings, or his ceasing to be the sole Owner or Co-Owner shall cause his office to become vacant.

Section 7. <u>Removal of Directors</u>. At any regular meeting or special meeting of the Association duly called, any one or more of the directors may be removed with or without cause by vote of a majority of Owners and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any director whose removal has been proposed by the Owners shall be given an opportunity to be heard at such meeting.

Section 8. Compensation. No compensation shall be paid to directors for their services as directors. No remunera--8-

tion shall be paid to a director for services performed by him for the Association in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been adopted by the Board of Directors before the services are undertaken. A director may not be an employee of the Association.

Section 9. <u>Regular Meetings</u>. A regular annual meeting of the Board shall be held immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of the Owners. Other meetings of the Board may be called, held and conducted in accordance with such regulations as the Board may, from time to time, adopt.

المسادية أأتر المتعلة أسترد مرزرا كا

Section 10. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on at least three (3) days notice to each director, given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of such meeting. Special meetings of the Board shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and with like notice on the written request of at least two directors.

Section 11. Waiver of Notice. Before or at any meeting of the Board of Directors any director may in writing waive notice of such meeting, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of notice to him of such meeting. If all the directors are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice thereof shall be required, and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 12. Quorum of Board. At all meetings of the Board of Directors a majority of the total number of directors established by these Bylaws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board. If less than a quorum shall be present at any meeting of the Board, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.

Section 13. <u>Fidelity Bonds</u>. The Board of Directors shall require that all officers, employees and agents of the Association handling or responsible for its funds, furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

-9-

## ARTICLE IV.

#### OFFICERS

Section 1. Designation. The principal officers of the Association shall be the President, Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by, and in the case of the President, from the Board of Directors. The Board may appoint an assistant treasurer, and assistant secretary, and such other officers as in its judgment may be necessary. One person may hold two offices, except that the offices of President and Secretary shall be filled by different persons.

Section 2. <u>Election of Officers</u>. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 3. <u>Removal of Officers</u>. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Board or any special meeting called for such purpose.

Section 4. <u>President</u>. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of president of an association, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the Owners from time to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.

Section 5. <u>Vice President</u>. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board of Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. <u>Treasurer</u>. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association.

untrywood (R)P: (Bylaws) 11

 $\langle$ 

He shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable affects in the name, and to the credit, of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall attend and keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors or of the Association; shall give all notices as provided by these Bylaws, and shall have other powers and duties as may be incidental to the office of Secretary, given by him by these Bylaws or assigned to him from time to time by the directors. If the Secretary shall not be present at any meeting, the presiding officer shall appoint a secretary pro tempore, who shall keep the minutes of such meeting and record them in the books provided for that purpose.

Section 8. Auditor. The Association may, at any meeting appoint some person, firm or corporation engaged in the business of auditing to act as auditor of the Association, and to perform such audits and fiscal duties as may be required by Alaska Horizontal Property Regimes or requested of him by the Association.

Section 9. Execution of Instruments. All checks, drafts, notes, acceptances, conveyances, contracts and other instruments shall be signed on behalf of the Association by such person or persons as shall be provided by general or special resolution of the Board of Directors or, in the absence of any such resolution applicable to such instrument, by the President or Vice President and by the Treasurer or Secretary.

#### ARTICLE V.

#### COMMITTEES

Section 1. <u>Committees of Directors</u>. The Board of Directors may designate one or more committees, each of which shall consist of one or more directors. Such committees, if composed entirely of Board members, shall have and exercise to the extent provided in the resolution establishing the committee, the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Association, but the designation of such committee shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors of any responsibility imposed upon it by law.

Section 2. Other Committees. Other committees, not having or exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in -11-

the management of the Association, may be designated by the President or the directors, and such committees may be composed of one or more members of the Association other than Board members, but each shall have one Board member as a member or chairman.

#### ARTICLE VI.

# ASSESSMENTS

Section 1. <u>Obligation</u>. All Owners shall be obligated to pay the estimated assessments imposed by the Board of Directors to meet the common expenses of maintenance, operation and management of the Project as set forth in the Declaration.

Section 2. Initial Obligation of Purchaser of a Condominium Unit. A first purchaser of a Condominium Unit from the Declarant shall be required at the closing of the acquisition of such Condominium Unit to deposit with the Association an amount equal to one-sixth of the particular Condominium Unit's allocation of the annual budget. This sum shall be placed in a working capital account for initial operation of the Project.

#### ARTICLE VII.

#### HANDLING OF FUNDS

Section 1. Accounts. The Association shall establish the necessary funds or accounts to properly provide for the operation and maintenance of the Property. Overall superintendance of these funds shall be the responsibility of the Treasurer of the Association. The Treasurer shall administer the various accounts in such a way that the funds are secure and that signature cards at the various institutions containing the funds are up to date.

#### ARTICLE VIII.

#### OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNERS

## Section 1. Rules and Regulations.

(a) No Owner or occupant shall post any advertisements, bills, posters or other signs on or about the Project, although not visible outside the Project, except signs of reasonable dimensions, (as authorized by the Board of Directors), advertising the rental or sale of individual Units. entry Wood (R)P: (Bylaws) 13

(b) All Owners and occupants shall exercise extreme care about making noises or in the use of musical instruments, radios, television sets, stereos and amplifiers that may disturb other occupants. No horns, whistles, bells or other sound devices, except security devices used exclusively to protect the security of a residence and its contents, shall be placed or used in any such residence.

(c) It is prohibited to hang or dust garments, rugs, etc., from the windows or from any of the facades of the Project.

(d) Parents shall be responsible for all damage to the Common Areas caused by their children, when such damage was caused by the negligence or wilful act of the child.

(e) No illegal use shall be made of the premises.

(f) If any Owner or occupant shall keep a dog or other pet in a Condominium Unit, he shall take all special care required to insure that such pet shall not disturb other Condominium residents in any way. If the Board of Directors shall receive a written complaint by two Owners concerning a bothersome animal, the Board shall, in its discretion, take action to eliminate the problem and may require the Owner of such pet to dispose of the pet, regardless of when the pet was obtained, or whether other Owners are permitted to retain their pets. No pet shall ever be permitted in Common Areas without a handler. Each pet owner shall promptly remove and properly dispose of all animal waste deposited by his pet in the Common Area, and each pet owner shall be responsible for the repair of all damaged areas, including damage to shrubberies and lawns of the Common Area.

(g) No Owner or occupant shall, without the written approval of the Board of Directors, install any wiring for electrical or telephone installations, machines or air-conditioning units, or other equipment or appurtenances whatsoever on the exterior of the Project or protruding through the walls, windows or roof thereof.

(h) Nothing shall be allowed, done or kept in any Condominium Unit or Common Areas of the Project which would overload or impair the floors, walls or roofs thereof, or cause any increase in the ordinary premium rates or the cancellation or invalidation of any insurance thereon maintained by or for the Association, nor shall any noxious or offensive activity or nuisance be made or suffered thereon.

-13-

untryWood (R)P: (Bylaws) 14

(i) Owners, tenants or guests shall not throw garbage or trash outside the disposal installations and trash containers provided for such purposes.

(j) The Board of Directors reserves the power to establish, make and enforce compliance with such additional rules and regulations as may be necessary for the operation, use and occupancy of this Project with the right to amend the same from time to time, and to impose reasonable fines for infractions of all rules and regulations.

Section 2. <u>Repair and Maintenance</u>. The Owners shall be responsible for certain repairs as set forth in the Declaration.

## ARTICLE IX.

## AMENDMENTS OF BYLAWS

Section 1. Procedure. These Bylaws may be amended in any respect not inconsistent with any provisions of law or the Declaration by vote of the members whose aggregate interest in the Common Area constitutes sixty percent (60%), at any meeting of the Association duly called for such purpose. Any material amendment to the Bylaws, including, but not limited to, any amendment which would change the percentage interests of the Owners in the Project requires the written approval of 75% of the Holders of first mortgages on the Condominium Units.

### ARTICLE X.

#### FISCAL YEAR

Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be such as may from time to time be established by the Association.

## ARTICLE XI.

#### COMPLIANCE

Section 1. <u>Subordination</u>. These Bylaws are subordinate and subject to the provisions of the Declaration and all amendments thereto. They are also intended to comply with the requirements of the Horizontal Property Regime Act of the State of Alaska. If any of these Bylaws conflict with the provisions of the statute, the provisions of the statute will apply. ſ

Section 2. <u>Interpretation</u>. In case any provision of these Bylaws shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not render invalid any other provisions hereof which can be given effect.

Section 3. <u>Nonprofit Corporation</u>. This Association is not organized for profit. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed or construed to authorize the Association or Board of Directors to conduct or engage in any active business for profit on behalf of any or all of the Owners.

#### ARTICLE XII.

## PERIODIC REAPPRAISAL

Section 1. In accordance with Section 34.07.180 A.S., the Units and Common Areas herein described shall be periodically reappraised, with a recomputation of the percentage of the undivided interest of each Owner in the Common Areas and Facilities as expressed in the Declaration, if required. The purpose of this paragraph is to insure the proper percentage of the undivided interest of each Owner in the Common Areas and Facilities.

## ADOPTION OF BYLAWS

The undersigned Declarant of said Project hereby adopts the foregoing Bylaws of its Association of Owners, this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 1983.

#### DESIGNS IN WOOD, LTD.

By:

#### Its: President

## - ADOPTION OF BYLAWS

We, the undersigned, being the first Board of Directors of Country Square Condominium Owners Association, Inc., as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation for such corporation hereby adopt the foregoing Bylaws as the Bylaws of such corporation.

SAMUEL HILL

-15-

• • •

PETER A. LEKISCH

(

MARY M. PUKSTA

-16-

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #1

g the frequency of

## ASSESSMENTS AND COLLECTIONS

WHEREAS, Article III, Section 2 of the Bylaws of the Association grants that "the Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association... and may do all such acts and things therefor as are not by law, by the Declaration or by these Bylaws, directed to be exercised and done only by the apartment owners;" and

WHEREAS, Article XV of the Declarations of Covenants and Restrictions establishes the obligation for payment and remedies for non-payment of assessments, and

WHEREAS, AS 34.08.470 provides lien and foreclosure procedures for delinquent assessments "as a mortgage or deed of trust on real estate is foreclosed, or as a lien is foreclosed under AS 34.35.005", and

WHEREAS, there is a need to establish orderly procedures for the collection of assessments which remain unpaid past their due date since delinquent assessments pose a serious financial and administrative burden on the Association, and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Directors to establish steps for the collection of assessments;

Now THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the procedures for collection of assessments be as follows:

1. Buchary ber allow

- Each monthly assessment is due and payable on the first day of each month and is delinquent thirty (30) days after the due date.
- Delinquent accounts not paid by the 20th day of the following month will be assessed a ten dollar (\$10.00) late charge. An additional ten dollar (\$10.00) charge will be made each month thereafter until the account is paid current.
- 3. On past due account, foreclosure proceedings will be initiated under the provisions of AS 34.08.470 in a timely fashion so that the collection rights of the Association will be effectively protected.

4. Administrative costs to the association for collection action shall be charged to the delinquent owner as an assessment against that unit. COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #1 PAGE 2

> 5. Small claims action may be initiated on any account which becomes delinquent in excess of \$500.00. After a judgement has been obtained, execution will be initiated through an appropriate legal channel. All costs incurred as a result of legal action and collection shall be charged to the delinquent owner.

Adopted for Review: January 11, 1986 Adopted by Board Action: January 20, 1986 Effective: February 1, 1986

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM

#### ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #2

RENTAL AND, LEASING PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, Article IV, Section 2 of the Bylaws of the Association grants that "the Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts and things therefore as are not by law, by the Declaration or by these Bylaws directed to be exercised and done only by the apartment Owners;" and

WHEREAS, Alaska Statute 34,07.390 states that "An apartment owner, his tenant, or their employees, or any other person that may in any manner use the property or any part of it under this chapter are subject to the provisions of the chapter and to the Declaration and Bylaws of the apartment owners adopted under this chapter," and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors requires accurate, complete, current information concerning the occupancy status of the individual apartments in order to make reasonable decisions concerning the health, safety and welfare of the individuals who use the common areas, and concerning the maintenance and upkeep of the property itself, and

WHEREAS, the right of a unit owner to lease his/her apartment is not restricted by the Declaration or Bylaws of the Association, and unit occupants who are not owners may not be aware of the use restrictions on the property of the Association, and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Directors to establish procedures for orderly rule making, enforcement and decision making for the Association

Now THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the procedures for administering the "tenancy regulations" for the Association shall be as follows:

1.

- Each unit owner who rents, leases or otherwise provides access to a tenant other than for him/herself, shall notify the Board of Directors of that fact in writing.
- 2. All agreements to occupy, rent, lease, or otherwise provide occupancy shall be in writing. The written document shall inform the resident of the use restrictions contained in the Declarations, shall attach a copy of same to the occupancy agreement and shall require compliance therewith as a condition of the agreement.

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #2 PAGE 2

5.

- 3. A copy of all written occupancy agreements shall be submitted to the Board of Directors so that they can verify conformity with the provisions of this resolution.
- 4. Each owner is required to fill out and return the Owner and/or renter information sheet attached hereto and to return it to the Board of Directors within 30 days of receipt of that form.
  - All communications concerning rental shall be addressed to the office of the management company retained by the Association at the following address:

Country Square/Marston Properties 4105 Turnagain Boulevard Anchorage, AK 99503

Accepted for Review: January 11, 1986 Adopted by Board Action: January 20, 1986 Effective Date: February 1, 1986

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #3

#### DUE PROCESS

WHEREAS, Alaska Statutes, Section 34.08.320, (a) (ll) provides that associations may, "after notice and an opportunity to be heard, levy a reasonable fine for violation of the declarations, bylaws, rules, and regulations of the associations," and

WHEREAS, Article III, Section 2, of the Bylaws grants the power to exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership..., and

WHEREAS, for the benefit and protection of the Association and of the individual member, the Board deems it desirable to establish and opperate by a procedure to insure due process in cases where there is a question of compliance by a member, his family, guest, invitee or tenant with provisions of the Declaration, Bylaws of Board policies, thereby attempting to minimize the necessity of seeking action in or through a court of law; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board to establish procedures for the Board and designated committee where they must take action relative to questions of compliance by an individual with the provisions of the governing documents and interpretive policies,

NOW THEREFORE, Be It Robolved That any actions by the Board and designated committees regarding violations of covenants, by laws, rules or regulations shall be in accordance with the following procedures:

Complaints of violations shall be brought to the attention of the Board member who shall refer it to the Covenant Committee. If the Covenants Committee indicates that the complaint appears well, founded, the Board shall proceed as follows:

- A. In its discretion, the Board may turn the matter over to an attorney with instructions to enforce the rights of the Association in the Alaska courts.
- B. Alternatively, the Board may proceed as follows:
  - 1. A notice of alleged violation shall be prepared and served upon the alleged violator.
  - 2. The notice shall specify in detail:

and the state

ы. <u>1</u>

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #3 PAGE 2

- a. The nature of the alleged violation and the specific covenant which is allegedly being violated.
- b. The date, time and place at which the Board shall consider and make a decision regarding the alleged violation. Said date shall be at least ten days from the date that the notice is served upon the alleged violator.
- c. The notice shall advise the alleged violator that he or she may be present at said meeting and present arguments or evidence in defense of the allegation.
- d. The notice shall advise the alleged violator that he or she may cure the violation prior to the meeting or may present evidence at the meeting as to his plans with regard to curing the violation.
- e. The notice shall advise the alleged violator of the penalties which may be imposed by the Board if it is determined that a violation exists.
- 3. Service of the notice shall be complete upon personal service or upon depositing the notice in the United States Mail of personal service cannot be accomplished. A reasonable effort shall be made to personally serve the notice upon the alleged violator. However, if personal service cannot be accomplished with resonable efforts, the notice shall be served by certified mail at the alleged violator's last known mailing address.
- 4. At the meeting at which the alleged violation is to be considered, the Board shall hear evidence from the Board member who has investigated the alleged violation and from other interested persons. The alleged violator shall be given an opportunity to fully defend the allegations including providing evidence or argument with regard to the alleged violation. Thereafter, the Board shall consider all of the evidence and make a finding with regard to the alleged violation, based upon evidence presented at the meeting. If the Board desires, the meeting may be adjourned to allow the Board to view the location of the alleged violation. If the Board determines that a violation exists, it may withhold imposition of a fine if the alleged violator presents evidence which convincingly demonstrates that the violation will be cured within a reasonable period of time.

COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION #3 PAGE 3

> 5. Pursuant to AS 34.08.320(a) (11), the Board may impose a fine for violation of a covenant in an amount not to exceed \$50.00 per day for every day that a violation occurs but said fine may not be imposed until the Board has formally determined that said violation exists. Said fine shall be an assessment against the owners property.

Published for Review: January 11, 1986 Adopted by Board Action: January 20, 1986 Effective Date: February 1, 1986

1 . A Charlenge land

. . . . .

## COUNTRY SQUARE CONDOMINIUM OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. RESOLUTION 11-1

WHEREAS, Country Square Condominium Owners Association, Inc. has inacted Bylaws of the Association pursuant to the Association's Declaration;

WHEREAS, the members of the Board wish to approve and adopt the Association's Bylaws;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Bylaws of the Association dated are hereby adopted and approved.

9-2012

Date

Date

Shroeder, Director, President

Debra Carlson, Director, Vice President

Katherine Yeotis, Director, Secretary

enberg, Director, Treasurer

Vacant, Director, President